Borough of Eastleigh

Council

Monday
28 November 2022
at 7:00 pm

1

2

Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

Friday, 18 November 2022
COUNCIL
will meet on
Monday, 28 November 2022
beginning at
7:00 pm
in the
Kings Community Church, Upper Northam Road, Hedge End, SO30 4BZ

TO:

All Members of Full Council

Staff Contacts:

Laura Johnston, Democratic Services Manager, 02380 688041 Email:
laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk

JOANNE CASSAR
Executive Head of Governance

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website
as well as in other formats.
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting,
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed. To register please
contact the Democratic Services Officer above.
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to
access committee papers.

3

AGENDA
1.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the
agenda. Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

4.

MINUTES (Pages 9 - 16)
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Council meeting held on 19
May 2022.

5.

LEADER'S REPORT
PART 1 - DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN

6.

RECOMMENDATIONS (INCLUDING CALL-INS) REQUIRING DECISION
(i)

Administration Committee- 24 October 2022

HEDGE END TOWN COUNCIL COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW 2022/23
(Minute 35)
RESOLVED –
That the Administration Committee:
(1)

Considered the report and responses received to the second public
consultation;

(2)

Agreed to the proposed changes to the warding arrangements for
Hedge End Town Council and recommended to Council that these
changes are adopted and a Reorganisation Order is made.

(ii)

Administration Committee- 24 October 2022

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL REVIEW OF COUNCILLORS'
ALLOWANCES (Minute 36)
That the Administration Committee:
(1)

Considered the report of the Independent Remuneration Panel;

(2)

Thanked the panel for their work; and

(3)

Make recommendations to Council that:
a) The Basic Allowance for members of Eastleigh Borough Council
for the year commencing 1 April 2022 should be unchanged ie.
£7,330.40 but index linked to national pay awards which has been

4

the practice since 2018;
b) Special Responsibility Allowance payments continue as currently
set and continue to be uplifted in line with national pay awards.
c) The Chair of the Horton Heath Development Management
Committee be paid the same rate as the Chair of the
Administration Committee, and not the Local Area Committee
(LAC) as recommended by the Panel as the role is not the same as
an LAC Chair. The Vice-Chair would be paid an appropriate scaled
relate at half the amount of a LAC Vice-Chair.
d) The scheme of allowances be updated to reflect the current
position of the payment of Dependants Allowances including
indexation and that prospective Councillors be made aware of
these provisions;
e) A passenger rate of 5p/mile be added to the Councillors’
Allowance Scheme for mileage claims. Public Transport rates to
be paid on production of receipts. A rate of 24p/mile for a
motorbike be introduced as well as 20p/mile for bicycles as per
the Officers Scheme of Allowances. It is further recommended that
a link to the claims process be established to allow ease of
claiming.
f)

Councillors can claim reimbursement of the cost of eye tests
upon production of appropriate receipts;

g) Any index linking should be in line with national staff salary
increases (NJC award) for a maximum of four years from 1 April
2022;
h) It be noted that in 2021/22 just under 54% of Councillors received
a Special Responsibility Allowance which is just above the
suggested good practice of no more than 50% of Councillors,
particularly when considering any reorganisation of roles.
i)

7.

The Councillors’ Allowance Scheme should be re-drafted to pull
together all the relevant information which is held in numerous
documents.

APPOINTMENT TO THE AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Council are asked to approve the appointment of Councillor Maud Attrill, replacing
Councillor Anne Buckley, on the Audit and Resources Committee for the
remainder of the municipal year.

8.

LOCAL PAY POLICY STATEMENT (Pages 17 - 26)

9.

CONSTITUTION - ANNUAL REVIEW AND UPDATES (Pages 27 - 44)
PART 2 - STATEMENTS AND QUESTIONS

10.

CABINET STATEMENTS (Pages 45 - 52)

5

To receive the following written statements by Members of the Cabinet on
relevant portfolio matters and to deal with any related questions:
a. Cabinet Member for Economy – Councillor Pretty
b. Cabinet Member for Health and Social Policy – Councillor Craig
c. Cabinet Member for Social Policy and Regeneration North – Councillor
Bicknell
PART 3 - RESOLVED ITEMS

11.

RESOLVED ITEMS - FOR NOTING AND QUESTIONS ONLY
CABINET
24 May 2022
7 July 2022
21 September 2022
20 October 2022
ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
27 June 2022
5 September 2022
24 October 2022
AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
23 May 2022
19 July 2022
6 September 2022
1 November 2022
POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL
23 June 2022
14 July 2022
13 October 2022
LICENSING COMMITTEE
5 October 2022
BISHOPSTOKE, FAIR OAK AND HORTON HEATH LOCAL AREA
COMMITTEE
29 June 2022
28 September 2022
BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
16 June 2022
22 September 2022

6

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
7 June 2022
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
13 June 2022
10 October 2022
HORTON HEATH DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
26 September 2022

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 27 February 2023 at 7:00 pm
In the Kings Community Church, Upper
Northam Road, Hedge End, SO30 4BZ
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s
happening in the Borough. Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus
lots more.

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
1
COUNCIL
Thursday, 19 May 2022 (7:07 pm – 8:38 pm)
PRESENT:
Councillor Garton (Chair); Councillors Asman, Attrill, Bearder, Beer,
Bicknell, Bourne, Broadhurst, Broomfield (until 20.03), Buckley, Corben,
Craig, Cross, Couldrey, Dean, Dedhia, Duguid, Gomer, Groves, Hadaway,
Holes, House, Irish, Jarvis, Kinloch, Kyrle, Mann, Manning, Marsh, Park,
Parker-Jones, Pragnell, Pretty, Spencer, Tennent, Tidridge and Welsh
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Rich and TysonPayne
________________________________________
RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)
126.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation on this occasion.

127.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor gave an overview of highlights in the civic calendar and
reflected on her year as Mayor, which included the Sports Awards at Hilton
at the Ageas Bowl, the Eastleigh Gurkha and Nepalese Association
events.
The Mayor mentioned that many events were being planned for the
Queen’s Platinum Jubilee, including Community Showcase, which was
organised by One Community and Eastleigh Borough Council and takes
place on 4 June.
The Mayor held a minute’s silence in memory of the friends and
colleagues that were sadly lost during the Mayoral year:
•
•
•

Colin Davidovitz – Former Borough and County Councillor
Judith Cam – Former Borough Councillor
David Chidgey – Former MP for Eastleigh Constituency

The Mayor thanked retiring Councillors – David Airey, Maggie Allingham,
Daniel Clarke, Judith Grajewski, Lucy Jurd and Rob Rushton, and also
thanked Tina Campbell, who was not re-elected as Borough Councillor.
The Mayor welcomed the new Borough Councillors - Cameron Spencer for
Eastleigh Central, Stephen Beer for Eastleigh North, Nicholas Couldrey for
Fair Oak and Horton Heath, Liz Jarvis for Hamble and Netley, Leigh
Hadaway for Hedge End North, Jane Welsh for Hedge End South, and

9

2
Maud Attrill for Hiltingbury. She also congratulated all newly elected Parish
Councillors.
128.

PRESENTATION OF FREEDOM OF THE BOROUGH AWARD
A video was played of Nirmal Purja receiving his Freedom of the Borough
award, which was conferred at Mayor Making on 20 May 2021.

129.

ELECTION OF MAYOR
RESOLVED –
That Councillor Adam Manning be elected Mayor of the Borough for
the ensuing municipal year and until acceptance of office by his
successor.
Councillor Manning then subscribed his declaration of acceptance of
office. The new Mayoress, Mrs Alison Manning, was invested with her
badge of office and the Mayor then addressed the Council.

130.

VOTE OF THANKS
RESOLVED –
That the best thanks of this Council be extended to Councillor
Cynthia Garton and Councillor Derek Pretty for the admirable way in
which they have carried out their duties of Mayor and Mayor’s Escort
during the past year.
Councillor Garton suitably replied to the vote of thanks. The Mayor and the
Mayoress then presented badges to Councillor Garton and Councillor
Pretty to mark their year of service to the Borough as Mayor and Mayor’s
Escort.
(NOTE: Councillor Broomfield left the meeting at 20.03)

131.

ELECTION OF DEPUTY MAYOR
RESOLVED –
That Councillor Nicholas Couldrey be elected Deputy Mayor of the
Borough for the ensuing municipal year and until acceptance of
office by his successor.
Councillor Couldrey then subscribed his declaration of acceptance of
office.

10

3

132.

CONFERMENT OF HONORARY ALDERMAN
The Chief Executive read the resolution of the Council that all ex-Members
that had served as a Councillor for 12 years or longer and were not
actively seeking re-election be formally invited to accept the award of
Honorary Alderman.
The title of Honorary Alderman was presented to David Airey, Daniel
Clarke, Judith Grajewski, Michael J Hughes, Trevor Mignot, Steve Sollitt,
Chris Thomas and Mike Thornton.
The Chief Executive explained that Daniel Clarke was unable to attend the
meeting.

133.

MINUTES
RESOLVED That the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 April 2022 be agreed as a
correct record.

134.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on
the agenda.

135.

ELECTION
The Mayor reported the election results as stated in Paper A in Item 11 of
the agenda.
The Mayor then collectively congratulated all members elected and
welcomed the Members who were newly elected to the Borough Council.
Thanks were given to those Councillors who had retired and those who
were not re-elected for all their work during their time on the Council.

136.

NUMBER OF PLACES ON COMMITTEES
Consideration was given to the number of places available on
Committees, the scrutiny panel and other bodies.
RESOLVED –
That the number of places on Committees, the Scrutiny Panel and
Other Bodies be as indicated in Paper B in item 12 of the agenda:

11

4
Main Committees

Lib Dems

Conservatives

Independents

Total

Admin (7)+

6

0

1

7

Audit & Resources
(10)

9

0

1

10

Licensing (15) **

13

0

2

15

Scrutiny Panel
Policy & Perf. (10)

8

1

1

10

Staff & JE Appeals
(4)

3

0

1

4

Airport Consultative
(3)

3

0

0

3

Treasury
Management (3)

3

0

0

4

Licensed Transport
Forum (3)

3

0

3

Places Leisure (6)

5

1

6

Other Panels

137.

0
0

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES/SCRUTINY
RESOLVED –
That Members be appointed to Committees, Scrutiny Panel and other
bodies for the year 2022/23 as set out in item 13 of the agenda,
namely:
AREA COMMITTEES

12

BISHOPSTOKE, FAIR OAK
AND HORTON HEATH
S Broomfield
N Couldrey
R Dean
M Marsh
L Parker-Jones
G Tidridge

BURSLEDON, HAMBLELE-RICE AND HOUND
A Craig
M Cross
S Holes
L Jarvis
A Manning
J Rich

CHANDLER’S FORD AND
HILTINGBURY
M Attrill
A Broadhurst
A Buckley

EASTLEIGH
S Beer
P Bicknell
A Bourne

5
J Duguid
T Groves
D A Pragnell

B Dedhia
W Irish
D Mann
T Park
C Spencer
S Tyson-Payne

HEDGE END, WEST END AND
BOTLEY
J Asman
T Bearder
I Corben
C Garton
R Gomer
L Hadaway
K House
D Kinloch
R Kyrle
D R Pretty
B Tennent
J Welsh
OTHER MAIN BODIES
AUDIT AND RESOURCES
COMMITTEE (10)
A Bourne (VCh)
S Beer
A Buckley
L Hadaway
S Holes (Ch)
W Irish
A Manning
T Park
B Tennent
G Tidridge
LICENSING
COMMITTEE (15)
BIFOHH
N Couldrey
R Dean
G Tidridge

CFH
A Broadhurst
A Buckley
T Groves

BHH
A Craig
M Cross
L Jarvis

ELAC
A Bourne
W Irish
T Park

ADMINISTRATION
COMMITTEE (7)
I Corben (Ch)
T Groves
K House (VCh)
L Jarvis
T Park
L Parker-Jones
D Pretty

HEWEB
J Asman
D Pretty
J Welsh

13

6
PANELS
POLICY AND PERFORMANCE
SCRUTINY PANEL (10)
J Asman
S Beer
A Broadhurst
S Broomfield
B Dedhia
J Duguid (VCh)
R Gomer (Ch)
D Kinloch
C Spencer
S Tyson-Payne
OTHER BODIES
STAFF AND JOB
EVALUTATION
APPEALS PANEL (4)
A Craig
I Corben
K House (Ch)
L Parker-Jones

PLACES LEISURE
EASTLEIGH
CONSULTATIVE GROUP
(6)
A Bourne
A Broadhurst
A Craig (Ch)
W Irish
D Pragnell
G Tidridge

TREASURY
MANAGEMENT
MEMBERS REVIEW
GROUP (3)
I Corben
K House (Ch)
D Pretty

HORTON HEATH DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
J Asman
T Bearder
S Broomfield
N Couldrey
R Gomer (Ch)
M Marsh
B Tennent (VCh)
AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE (3)
J Asman
T Groves
D Pretty
LICENSED TRANSPORT FORUM (3)
T Groves (Ch)
W Irish
D Pretty
CABINET
Councillor Keith House – Leader and Cabinet Member for Planning

14

7
Councillor Ian Corben – Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Regeneration (South)
Councillor Paul Bicknell – Cabinet Member for Regeneration (North) and
Social Policy (interim)
Councillor Derek Pretty – Cabinet Member for Economy
Councillor Tonia Craig – Cabinet Member for Health and Social Policy
(interim)
Councillor Rupert Kyrle – Cabinet Member for Environment
Councillor Tim Groves – Cabinet Member for Transport
138.

TO APPOINT CHAIRS AND VICE CHAIRS AS APPROPRIATE FOR THE
YEAR 2022/23
RESOLVED –
That Chairs and Vice Chairs be appointed as set out in item 14 of the
agenda, namely:
Main Bodies

Chair

Vice Chair

Administration Committee

I Corben

K House

Licensing Committee
Audit & Resources Committee
Policy & Performance Scrutiny Panel

J Asman
S Holes
R Gomer

J Welsh
A Bourne
J Duguid

BHH LAC
BIFOHH LAC
CFH LAC
EASTLEIGH LAC
HEWEB LAC

A Craig
L Parker-Jones
J Duguid
A Bourne
C Garton

S Holes
R Dean
A Broadhurst
P Bicknell
J Asman

Horton Heath Development Management

R Gomer
Chair

B Tennent

Staff Appeals & Job Evaluation Appeals Panel
Places Leisure Consultative Group
Treasury Management Members Review Group

K House
A Craig
K House

15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
COUNCIL
Monday, 28 November 2022
LOCALISM ACT – 2011 – SECTION 38: LOCAL PAY POLICY
STATEMENT
Report of the Head of Human Resources- Sukhi Aujla

Recommendation
It is recommended that Council formally confirms its acceptance of the attached
Pay Policy Statement which complies with the Council’s obligation under Section
38 of the Localism Act 2011. This Pay Policy Statement will then be published on
the Council’s website for transparency.

Summary
As part of the Government’s desire to have open and transparent pay/terms and
conditions arrangements for its most senior staff, Section 38 (1) of the Localism Act 2011
requires English and Welsh local authorities to produce a pay policy statement and to
formally review and agree it at Council each year. This responsibility cannot be devolved
to any other person or committee. The attached statement is drawn up in compliance with
the Act and covers the financial year 2021/22.
Under the Local Authorities (Data Transparency) Code 2015 and the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 new and additional information on senior managers and unions is
required to be published; key duties of role / staffing and budget responsibilities / contact
details etc. This is not covered by this policy but all required information under the Data
Transparency Code is published on the Council’s website for open public access at any
time.
Statutory Powers
Localism Act 2011

Introduction
1. This Policy Statement has been produced in accordance with Sections 38
to 43 of the Localism Act 2011 (the Act), which requires local authorities to
publish an annual statement of their policy for the relevant financial year in
relation to:

17



The policy on the level and elements of remuneration for each chief
officer



The policy on the remuneration of its lowest-paid employees (together
with its definition of “lowest-paid employees” and its reasons for
adopting that definition)



The policy on the relationship between the remuneration of its chief
officers and other officers



The policy on other specific aspects of chief officers’ remuneration:
remuneration on recruitment, increases and additions to remuneration,
use of performance-related pay and bonuses, termination payments,
and transparency.



Specifically, the guidance states that pay policy statements should set
out policies on the reward of chief officers who fit into one of the
following categories:
- were previously employed by the same authority, left with a severance
or redundancy payment, and have come back as a chief officer.
- were previously employed by the same authority and have come back
as a chief officer under a contract for services
- are in receipt of a Local Government Pension Scheme or Fire fighter
pension (whether their previous service was with the same authority
or not).

2.

In the interests of clarity and transparency, it is recommended that
authorities should use the opportunity to set out their overall rewards
strategy for the whole workforce and not to limit themselves to matters
specifically required by the Act and statutory guidance.
The pay policy statement:
• must be approved formally by the Council
• must be approved each year
• can be amended in-year
• must be published on the authority’s website (and in any other way the
authority chooses)
• must be complied with when the authority sets the terms and
conditions for a chief officer.
3. Eastleigh Borough Council complies with legislation that already requires a
local authority to publish statements relating to remuneration. Regulation 7

18

Eastleigh Borough Council

of the `Local Government (Early Termination of Employment)
(Discretionary compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006
requires an authority to formulate, review, and publish its policy on making
discretionary payments on early termination of employment. In addition,
regulation 66 of the `Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration)
Regulations 2008` requires an authority to publish its policy on increasing
an employee’s total pension scheme membership and on awarding
additional pension.

Heading
4. Eastleigh Borough Council Pay Policy Statement – Financial Year
2021/2022

Financial Implications
5. There are no specific financial implications resulting from this report. The
report and its appendix outlines current arrangements with regards to the
Council’s pay arrangements for chief officers and other staff.

Risk Assessment
6. The Council has a legal duty to ensure that it provides a public annual Pay
Policy Statement that meets the various requirements of Sections 38 to 43
of the `Localism Act 2011`. The attached Statement has been drawn up to
meet those requirements.

Equality and Diversity Implications
7. The Statement covers all paid staff within the Council and is a matter of
fact. There are no particular equality and diversity implications to note.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
8. There are no climate change or environmental emergency considerations
arising from this report.

Conclusion
3. Council is asked to formally confirm its acceptance of the
Pay Policy Statement (Appendix 1) which complies with the Council’s
obligation under Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011. Once adopted at full
Council, the attached statement will be published on the Council's website
and is available for any of the public to access at any time.
SUKHI AUJLA - HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES
Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:

07 November 2022
Sukhi Aujla
023 8068 8387
Eastleigh Borough Council

19

e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

sukhi.aujla@eastleigh.gov.uk
1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.



20

Section 38 - 43 of the Localism Act 2011
Local Government Association (LGA) Advisory letter to Chief Executives – 25
November 2011 - LOCALISM ACT: Pay Policy Statements guidance for Local
Authority Chief Executives.

Eastleigh Borough Council

Appendix 1

Eastleigh Borough Council Pay Policy Statement – Financial year
2021/2022
1.0 Purpose
Under Section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the “power to
appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the authority thinks fit”.
This Pay Policy statement sets out Eastleigh Borough Council`s (the Council)
approach in accordance with the requirements of section 38 of the Localism Act
2011 relating to the pay of its workforce for the financial year 2021/2022. Its purpose
is to provide transparency with the regard to the Council’s approach to setting the
pay of its employees.
In addition, it provides information on facilities time given for local, recognised trade
union representatives. In relation to pay the Council has one set of terms and
conditions which cover all staff groups as part of the Single Status Agreement signed
in 2000. There are no separate or more advantageous arrangements for any groups
of staff, including senior staff.
The Pay Policy aims to ensure that all employees are rewarded fairly and without
discrimination for the work that they do. It reflects fairness and equality of
opportunity, the need to encourage and enable employees to perform to the best of
their ability and the commitment to operate a transparent pay and band structure.
The Council recognises that pay is not the only means of rewarding and supporting
employees and offers a wider range of non-pay benefits, such as flexible working
arrangements, access to learning and development and an Employee Assistance
Programme.

2.0 Definitions
For the purpose of this pay policy statement the following definitions will apply: Chief Officers Section 43(2) of the Localism Act 2011 defines Chief Officers as:
•
•
•
•
•

the authority’s Head of Paid Service under section 4(1) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 (the ‘Act’)
the Monitoring Officer under section 5(1) of the Act
statutory officers under section 2(6) of the Act
non-statutory officers under section 2(7) of the Act
deputy chief officers under section 2(8) of the Act
Eastleigh Borough Council

21

From the definitions provided by sections 4(1), 5(1), 2(6) and 2(7) of the Act, Chief
Officers are: the Chief Executive; Corporate Leadership Board members (including
the Chief Financial Officer) and the Executive Head of Governance (Monitoring
Officer).
Deputy Chief Officers are defined in section 2(8) of the Act as a person who is
required to ‘report directly or is directly accountable to one or more of the statutory or
non-statutory chief officers’. This covers: Executive Heads and the Strategic
Planning Manager who report directly to a Corporate Director.
Lowest paid employees are those staff on salary band 1. This band is the lowest
salary band of the Council’s salary system which covers those posts assessed
through the job evaluation scheme as having the least amount of complexity and
responsibility and therefore attracting the lowest salary. This Council has committed
to paying the Living Wage, which is higher than the National Minimum Wage (the
minimum amount all workers are entitled to as set by the Government).
Other staff are those paid below Chief Officer level but above the minimum Band
1/Level 2 Apprenticeships.
3.0 Pay Framework
All staff, from the lowest paid to the Chief Executive, are assigned a pay band using
the Council’s agreed job evaluation system. There is one job-evaluation system
which covers all staff, including Chief Officers. All posts are evaluated by a trained
job evaluation panel which includes a union representative, a manager and a HR
representative.
The pay bands range from Band 1 (the lowest) to Band 17 (the highest).

4.0

Key salary data April 2022

The Council monitors the relationship between the remuneration of its Chief Officers
and Deputies and the remuneration of its lowest paid employees. The Council also
commits to calculating the pay ratio on an annual basis to monitor trends and to
ensure that this pay multiple does not widen significantly.
The Council defines its ‘lowest paid employees’ as employees paid on the first pay
point. This is the lowest rate of pay applied to council employees, £18,328 per
annum.
Using 2021/2022 salary data;

22

Eastleigh Borough Council





5.0

The maximum salary payable at Band 17 is 6.41 times higher than the
minimum of Band 1.
Median salary = £25,391
The current ratio of the mid-point of the Chief Executive’s band to the median
salary in the organisation is 1:4.5 This is based on a median salary of £25,391
Pay bands (and uplifts)

The pay bands are locally determined and increase in line with any nationally agreed
pay award agreed between Local Government National Employers following
negotiation with national local government trades unions. Where no national
increase is made, no uplift is made locally to the salary bands.

6.0

Progression within pay bands

Staff (including senior managers) are appointed to a spot salary within the band for
their post. Normally this is on or at the lower end of the band unless there are clear
reasons for placing an individual higher up the band (usually based on level of
competency and previous relevant experience). Progression within the band is not
automatic and there are no automatic annual increments. Employees undergo
performance development reviews as part of our annual performance management
cycle, where progress against objectives and behaviours is assessed. An increase in
basic pay is only made where clear criteria have been met (including the
achievement of annual objectives/targets and demonstration of employee
behaviours) and are always subject to local funding availability. Where local funding
is not available for performance-related increases, only the national pay award is
granted. Where performance increases are granted, the Council’s Corporate
Leaders review all recommendations for salary increases to ensure fairness,
consistency and affordability. Increases are not given where there are attendance
(unrelated to maternity or disability) or performance issues or a live disciplinary
warning. Staff at the top of their band cannot receive an increase in their basic pay
arising from their performance but can receive a non-consolidated payment for
demonstrating exceptional performance.
Where an employee has demonstrated performance over and above what is
expected or taken on a one-off project that is in addition to their substantive role but
is not to be awarded a consolidated pay increase, they can be granted a one-off
payment in the form of an honorarium. All such payments are subject to the approval
of the Executive Head, Finance and Head of HR.
For employees temporarily carrying out the role of a higher-band post, they can be
granted an acting up payment which reflects the additional duties and responsibilities
undertaken. This is based upon the salary level of the higher band role that is being

Eastleigh Borough Council

23

carried out. All such payments are subject to the approval of the Executive Head,
Finance and Head of HR.
Career-band/trainee posts: Special arrangements are in place for certain trainee
posts (referred to within the Council as ‘career band posts’). These posts span more
than one band. Progression through the band is based on the assessed
achievement of agreed competencies and/or achievement of professional
qualifications.

7.0 Allowances and additions
Allowances: Some allowances are in place for matters such as working overtime,
working on public holidays and are in line with the Council’s Expenses Policy.
Expenses: The Council recognises that some employees incur necessary
expenditure in the conducting of their duties, for example travel costs.
Reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred on Council business are paid to
employees and approved by the relevant Manager.
Professional subscriptions: Where it is an essential requirement that an employee
holds membership of a professional body in order to be able to perform their role, the
Council will re-imburse the cost of one professional membership.
Pension: All employees are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme.
Contribution rates are a percentage of earnings. Employees can decide to opt out of
the Scheme. The benefits payable are set out in Local Government Pensions
regulations.
Market supplements: The Council reviews appropriate external pay market data to
ensure our remuneration levels are consistent with other local authorities, provide
value for money for the tax-payer and support the Council to remain as a competitive
employer in areas of skills shortage. If appropriate, market factors are applied for
some difficult to fill posts. In exceptional circumstances where such market factors
are applied, any such supplements are reviewed regularly in line with Council policy.
8.0

24

Who conducts pay reviews for whom?
•

Senior managers in conjunction with line managers for their staff

•

Corporate Leadership Board for Executive Heads

•

The Chief Executive for the three Corporate Directors and Local Area
Managers and Strategic Planning Manager

•

The Leader of the Council for the Chief Executive

Eastleigh Borough Council

9.0

Termination of Employment / redundancy

On ceasing to be employed by the Council, employees will be paid contractual
payments due under their contract of employment. Employees with more than 2
years continuous service are eligible for a redundancy payment if their post is
declared redundant and no suitable alternative role can be found for them. The
Council’s Organisational Change Procedure details the conditions under which
redundancy payments can be made. The Council calculates redundancy payments
based on an individual’s actual pay (a week’s pay), length of continuous service and
age, in line with statutory calculations.

10.0

Trade union facility time

The Council formally recognises three unions: UNISON, GMB and Unite. In this
reporting period, the Council recognised five staff to undertake local union duties
(equating to 3.93 full time equivalent). This is broken down as follows:
1)
Local Branch Secretary, Unison and four local Unison representatives.
Duties include; meetings with the Corporate Leadership Board member (Corporate
Director) and HR Lead at the Joint Consultative Committee, Branch meetings,
meetings with staff, staff representation and various ad hoc work including job
evaluation. The Unison Branch Secretary is the formal Employee Side
Representative.
2)

There are currently no GMB or Unite representatives in place.

Facilities time represents approx. £7,777 cost per annum, including employer oncosts.
11.0

Conclusion

This pay policy statement will be reviewed annually and recommended to Full
Council for approval. The Council may, by resolution of the Full Council, amend this
Pay Policy Statement during the course of the year to which it relates.

Eastleigh Borough Council

25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
COUNCIL
Monday, 28 November 2022
CONSTITUTION - ANNUAL REVIEW AND UPDATES
Report of the Executive Head of Governance (Monitoring Officer)

Recommendation
It is recommended that Council approves the proposed amendments to the
Constitution as set out in appendix 1.

Summary
A review of the Constitution has been carried out by the Monitoring Officer to ensure it
remains up to date, fit for purpose and understandable.
Statutory Powers
Local Government Act 2000 section 37
Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015
Localism Act 2011

Strategic Implications
1.

This report relates to all objectives in the Corporate Plan 2015-2025 in that an
up to date and legally compliant Constitution is required to underpin the
activities and decision making of the Council.

Introduction
2.

Eastleigh Borough Council’s Constitution sets out the way in which the
Council runs and the processes it uses. A good Constitution assists both
councillors and staff in the process of democratic decision making and must
be understood by all, including members of the public who interact with the
Council. A written Constitution is required by law.

3.

Eastleigh Borough Council’s Constitution was comprehensively reviewed
during 2020/21. The revised Constitution was adopted by Council on 11
November 2022. To ensure it remains up to date and fit for purpose the
Monitoring Officer, as custodian of the Constitution, will carry out an annual

27

review. This report presents to Council the revisions suggested as a result of
the Monitoring Officer’s annual review.

The Constitution
4.

A copy of the current Constitution is available on the Council’s Website.

5.

Appendix 1 provides details of the suggested amendments to the Constitution.

6.

Part 4 of the Constitution includes the Contract Procedure Rules which govern
the purchase of works, supplies and services by or on behalf of the Council
and comply with the Public Contract Regulations 2015. The current version
requires an update to incorporate the procedures for Dynamic Purchasing
Systems (DPS). A copy of the suggested paragraphs detailing the
arrangements for DPS for inclusion can be found at Appendix 2 which have
been subject to review by the Procurement Executive Group.

7.

Council is asked to adopt the amendments as set out in Appendices 1 and 2.

8.

Council is asked to note that further changes to the Constitution may be
required following any revision to staff structures and the Monitoring Officer
will provide a further report as necessary.

Financial Implications
9.

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However, the
Constitution does include the Financial Procedure Rules (part 4) which
governs how the Council’s finances operate and has been subject to review
by the Chief Financial Officer, Executive Head of Finance and Strategic
Housing and the Chief Accountant.

Risk Assessment
10.

An up to date Constitution is necessary to ensure effective governance of the
Council and that the Council complies with the rules of law.

Equality and Diversity Implications
11.

The long-term aim of the Council is to embed within its services, processes
and culture an inclusive mindset and approach that values every individual.
The updated Constitution aims to achieve this, and changes were made to
ensure gender neutrality. The Constitution is produced in an accessible format
and readily available to the public via the Council’s website which complies
with accessibility standards.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
12.

28

There are no Climate Change and Environmental Implications arising from the
decision in this report. It is a decision relating to constitutional and governance
arrangements.

Eastleigh Borough Council

Conclusion
13.

Under provisions contained within the Local Government Act 2000 (and as
subsequently amended) the Council is required to prepare and maintain a
Constitution. A Constitution ensures procedures are efficient, transparent and
accountable. The purpose of this report is to obtain approval from Council for
the proposed changes.
JOANNE CASSAR
EXECUTIVE HEAD OF GOVERNANCE (MONITORING OFFICER)

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

7 November 2022
Joanne Cassar
02380 688015
joanne.cassar@eastleigh.gov.uk
one

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
None

Eastleigh Borough Council

29

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1
Amendments to the Constitution – November 2022
To assist updates are underlined and highlighted in yellow in the final column of the table below: “ Revised wording (subject to approval)”
Heading
Article 11

Section
11.04

Page
32

Current wording
Not currently included in 11.04 Role.

Revised wording (subject to approval)
Additional role to be added (as recommended by
Cabinet 7 July 2022):


Article 12

12.03

34

Dealing with any reports relating to Councillor
Allowances including the noting of the actual
Councillors’ Allowance paid for the preceding
year and reports of the Independent
Remuneration Panel.

The following rules will apply:
The following rules will apply:
• Minority order provision will not apply on issues • Minority order provision will not apply on issues
where the Committee has met in quasi-judicial
where the Committee has met in quasi-judicial
mode, as determined by the Monitoring Officer
mode, as determined by the Monitoring Officer or
or on matters solely the responsibility of the
on matters solely the responsibility of the Licensing
Licensing Committee.
Committee.
• Any decision may be referred back (at the
• Any decision may be referred back (at the
Committees discretion) to the Committee,
Committees discretion) to the Committee, where
where an error or fact or law has been made
an error or fact or law has been made and where
and where permissible under the legislation.
permissible under the legislation.
• Before being permitted to sit on the Licensing
Committee or a Licensing Panel, Councillors will be
required to attend full training and then attend a
refresher training session every 2 years or sooner
should there be a significant change in legislation.
Any Councillor who has received full or refresher
training and has not participated in a panel hearing
in the 2 years since their last date of training will

31

32
Heading

Section

Page

Current wording

Revised wording (subject to approval)
be encouraged to attend the full annual training
session. This is a minimum requirement and
Councillors are not precluded from attending any
full or refresher training session should they wish.

Article 18

Part 2

44

Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the
Constitution

Suggest Article 18 is amended to reflect paragraph
41.01 as follows:

18.01
b. Procedure to Suspend: A motion to suspend any
Rules (including Standing Orders) will not be moved
without notice unless at least one half of the whole
number of Councillors of the relevant body is
present. The extent and duration of suspension will
be proportionate to the result to be achieved,
taking account of the purposes of the Constitution
set out in Article 1.

18.01
b. Procedure to Suspend: A motion to suspend any
Rules (including Standing Orders) will not be moved
without notice unless there shall be present a quarter
of the members of the Council, or in the case of the
Cabinet or a Committee, at least three members. The
extent and duration of suspension will be
proportionate to the result to be achieved, taking
account of the purposes of the Constitution set out in
Article 1.

INCONSISTENT with the Rules of Procedure as set
out below:
Rules of
Procedure

Part 4
Miscellaneous

97

Suspension of Standing Orders
Paragraph 41.01
Except in the case of a motion under Standing
Order 24.05, a motion to suspend Standing Orders
shall not be moved under Standing Order 11.0 that is without notice given in pursuance of
Standing Order 10.0 - unless there shall be present
at least a quarter of the members of the Council, or
in the case of the Cabinet or a Committee, at least
three members.

Heading
Scheme of
Delegation

Scheme of
Delegation

Section
Part 3,
Appendix C

Part 3,
Appendix C

Page
55

57-60

Current wording
Specific Staff Delegations

Revised wording (subject to approval)
New Paragraph 2.02

Not currently included but suggested to account for
any job title/role changes or succession/acting up
arrangements that occur between reviews of the
Constitution as a result of Organisational Change.

Responsibility of Functions

2.02 Any post specifically referred to below shall be
deemed to include any successor post, or a post that
includes within the job description, elements relevant
to any particular delegation, which were also present
in the former post and shall include anyone acting up
or seconded or discharging the functions of the post
on an interim basis.
Responsibility of Functions

Functions relating to planning and development
matters.

Functions relating to planning and development
matters.

Functions 48-68 - Delegation: Executive Head of
Planning and Economy

Functions 48-61, 63, 67, 68 – Delegation: Executive
Head of Planning and Economy or Planning Manager

Scheme of
Delegation

Part 3,
Appendix C

65

Function 100
Delegation:
Executive Head / Environment

Function 100
Delegation:
Executive Head of Environment

Scheme of
Delegation

Part 3,
Appendix C

70

Responsibility of Functions

Responsibility of Functions

Functions relating to Property and Assets
Function 127
w) The negotiation and agreement of terms for the
imposition, modification and conveyances on
property titles.
Notices of meetings
The Council will give at least five clear days’ notice
of any meeting by publishing details of the
meeting.

Functions relating to Property and Assets
Function 127
w) The negotiation and agreement of terms for the
imposition, modification and removal of covenants on
property titles.
Notices of meetings
The Council will give at least five clear working days’
notice of any meeting by publishing details of the
meeting.

Access to
Information
Procedure Rules

Part 4,
Paragraph 4.0

102

33

34
Heading
Access to
Information
Procedure Rules

Section
Part 4,
Paragraph 5.0

The Forward
Plan

Part 4, Para
15.01

The Forward
Plan

The Forward
Plan

Part 4, Para
16.0

Part 4, Para
20.01

Page
102

106

107

108

Current wording
Access to Agenda and Reports before the Meeting

Revised wording (subject to approval)
Access to Agenda and Reports before the Meeting

The Council will publish copies of the agenda and
reports open to the public at least five clear days
before the meeting. If an item is added to the
agenda later, the revised agenda (where reports
are prepared after the summons has been sent out,
the designated officer shall make each such report
available to the public as soon as the report is
completed and sent to Councillors) will be open to
inspection from the time the item was added to the
agenda.

The Council will publish copies of the agenda and
reports open to the public at least five clear working
days before the meeting. If an item is added to the
agenda later, the revised agenda will be open to
inspection from the time the item was added to the
agenda. Where reports are prepared after the
summons has been sent out, the designated officer
shall make each such report available to the public as
soon as the report is completed and sent to
Councillors.

Period of Forward Plan

Period of Forward Plan

Forward Plans will be prepared on a monthly basis
by the Leader to cover a period of four months.

Forward Plans will be prepared on a monthly basis by
the Democratic Services Manager to cover a period of
four months.

General Exception

General Exception

c. after five clear days have elapsed following the
day on which the proper officer made available the
notice referred to in sub-paragraph (b).

c. after five clear working days have elapsed following
the day on which the proper officer made available
the notice referred to in sub-paragraph (b).

Report Intended to be taken into Account

Report Intended to be taken into Account

Where an individual member of the Cabinet
receives a report which they intend to take into
account in making any key decision, then they will
not make the decision until at least five clear days
after receipt of that report.

Where an individual member of the Cabinet receives a
report which they intend to take into account in
making any key decision, then they will not make the
decision until at least five clear working days after
receipt of that report.

Heading
The Forward
Plan

Procedure Rules
for Area
Committees
and the
Administration
Committee

Procedure Rules
for Area
Committees
and the
Administration
Committee

Section
Part 4, Para
21.01

Part 4, 2.04

Part 4, 2.05

Page
108

Current wording
Rights to Copies

Revised wording (subject to approval)
Rights to Copies

120

b. any decision taken by an individual member of
the Cabinet. The documents must be provided as
soon as practicable but no later than 10 clear days
after the request is received.
Who can put items on a Committee Agenda?

b. any decision taken by an individual member of the
Cabinet. The documents must be provided as soon as
practicable but no later than 10 clear working days
after the request is received.
Who can put items on a Committee Agenda?

B The Leader or the Chair or Vice-Chair of an Area
Committee or the Administration Committee may
put on the agenda of a relevant Committee
meeting any matter which they wish, whether or
not authority has been delegated to the Committee
or any Councillor or member of staff in respect of
that matter. The Monitoring Officer will comply
with the member’s request in this respect.

B The Leader or the Chair or Vice-Chair of an Area
Committee or the Administration Committee may put
on the agenda of a relevant Committee meeting any
matter which they wish, whether or not authority has
been delegated to the Committee or any Councillor or
member of staff in respect of that matter. The
Monitoring Officer will comply with the Councillor’s
request in this respect.

C The provisions in paragraph (b) above are in
addition to the right of councillors to submit a
Notice of Motion to a Committee on any matter
relevant to that Committee, in accordance with
standing order 7 (in Council and Committee
Procedure Rules in Part 4).

C The provisions in paragraph (b) above are in addition
to the right of councillors to submit a Notice of Motion
to a Committee on any matter relevant to that
Committee, in accordance with standing order 10 (in
Council and Committee Procedure Rules in Part 4).

Sub-Committees

Sub-Committees

The Administration Committee may appoint subcommittees for the purpose of considering a
complaint(s) that a Member has breached the
Council’s Code of Conduct referred to the subcommittee by the Monitoring Officer. The
procedure for these meetings will be in accordance

The Administration Committee may appoint subcommittees for the purpose of considering a
complaint(s) that a Councillor has breached the
Council’s Code of Conduct referred to the subcommittee by the Monitoring Officer. The procedure
for these meetings will be in accordance with the

120

35

36
Heading

Section

Page

Current wording
with the procedure agreed by the Council and
published here.

Revised wording (subject to approval)
procedure agreed by the Council and published here.

Financial
Procedure Rules

Part 4,
Appendix H

121148

Job title referenced

Any reference to Head of Internal Audit to be updated
to Chief Internal Auditor

Financial
Procedure Rules

Part 4,
Appendix H,
paragraph
4.31

135

Treasury Management

Treasury Management

The full Council is responsible for approving the
Treasury Management Policy statement setting out
the matters detailed in section 6 of CIPFA’s Code of
Practice for Treasury Management in Local
Authorities 2017.

The full Council is responsible for approving the
Treasury Management Policy statement setting out
the matters detailed in section 6 of CIPFA’s Code of
Practice for Treasury Management in Local Authorities
2021.
And agreement is sought to update any other
reference to the 2017 Code of Practice to 2021.

Financial
Procedure Rules

Part 4,
Appendix H,
paragraph
4.49

137

Information Technology
4.49 The Information Technology Board, in liaison
with the relevant Cabinet Lead, is responsible for
overseeing the development, review and
compliance with Digital Strategy.
4.50 The Information Technology Board are
authorised to make minor changes to the Digital
Strategy in the light of changing circumstances, and
in particular to keep it up to date.
4.51 The Information Technology Board are
authorised to agree and amend the annual

Information Technology
4.49 The Executive Team is responsible for agreeing
the priorities for IT Development activity which will be
documented in an agreed IT Programme.
4.50. The Head of IT, in liaison with their Executive
Head, is responsible for overseeing the development,
review and compliance with the IT Programme and
reporting progress regularly to the Organisation
Development Review Group.
4.51 The Head of IT, in liaison with the Chief
Accountant will highlight to the Executive Team any
amendments to the IT Programme that may have

Heading

Section

Page

Current wording
investment programme within the CIP, in
consultation with the Leader, subject to the
Council’s normal budgetary processes, including
the consideration of ongoing revenue costs.

Revised wording (subject to approval)
budget implications subject to the Council’s normal
budgetary processes.

Contract
Standing Orders

Part 4,
Appendix K

156

1.04 Every contract which the Council enters into
must be recorded on the Contracts and
Partnerships Register (under development). This
register should be kept updated by every Lead
Specialist and held centrally by the Chief Financial
Officer. Details of the contracts register must also
be published quarterly on the Council’s website as
part of the Government’s transparency agenda.

1.04 Every contract made by the Borough Council or
on its behalf shall comply with the Procurement
Regulations and all other legal requirements, CSOs and
financial regulations. Procurement Regulations refers
to the following:
a) the Public Contract Regulations 2015
b) the Concession Contacts Regulations 2016
c) the Utilities Contracts Regulations 2016
d) the Public Procurement (Agreement on
Government Procurement) (Thresholds) (Amendment)
Regulations 2021
Every contract which the Council enters into must be
recorded on the Contracts and Partnerships Register.
This register should be kept updated by every Service
Manager and held centrally by the Chief Financial
Officer. Details of the contracts register must also be
published quarterly on the Council’s website as part of
the Government’s transparency agenda.
And agreement is sought to update any other
reference to EU or OJEU Regulation/Thresholds/Rules
to Procurement Regulations/Thresholds/Rules as
follows:

157

Para 2.01 refers to OJEU Rules

Para 2.01 – update to Procurement Regulations

37

38
Heading

Contract
Standing Orders

Section

Part 4,
Appendix K

Page
157

Current wording
c. Contracts £75,000 up to EU Thresholds (exclusive
of VAT)

Revised wording (subject to approval)
c. Contracts £75,000 up to Procurement Regulations
Thresholds

158

Legal Requirements for below EU Threshold
Contracts

Legal Requirements for below Procurement
Regulations Thresholds

158

3.01 – refers to EU thresholds

3.01 update to Procurement Regulations Thresholds

158

C. internal Process for Contracts Valued £75,000
but less than EU Thresholds

C. Internal Process for Contracts Valued £75,000 but
less than Procurement Regulations Thresholds

161

14.01 i. refers to the Official Journal of the
European Union (OJEU)

14.01 i. update to the Find A Tender

162

18.01 i. For tenders valued above EU Thresholds

18.01 i. For Tenders valued above Procurement
Regulations Thresholds

164

24.01 ii. £75,000 up to EU Thresholds

24.01 ii. £75,000 up to Procurement Regulations
Thresholds

164

24.01 iii. Over EU Thresholds

24.01 iii. Over Procurement Regulations Thresholds

166

31.01 For contracts above EU Thresholds ……

31.01 For contracts above Procurement Regulations
Thresholds….

166

31.02 reference EU law and European Technical
Standards

31.02 remove reference to EU Law and European
Technical Standards

157

Rules of Procedure

Rules of Procedure

Financial Thresholds and Procurement Procedures
2.03 d

Financial Thresholds and Procurement Procedures
2.03 d

Heading

Section

Page

Current wording

Revised wording (subject to approval)

Contracts above EU thresholds (exclusive of VAT)

Contracts above Procurement Regulations Thresholds
(previously referred to as EU Thresholds)

The officer must comply with the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 (PCR 2015) which governs the
award of public contracts – refer to Section (D) for
full details. Waivers cannot be sought in these
circumstances. The EU Thresholds are…

The officer must comply with the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015, Utilities Contract Regulations 2016,
Concession Contracts Regulations 2016 and Public
Procurement (Agreement on Government
Procurement) (Thresholds) (Amendment) Regulations
2021 (exclusive of VAT) which governs the award of
public contracts – refer to Section (D) for full details.
Waivers cannot be sought in these circumstances. The
Procurement Regulations Thresholds are…

D Procedure for Contracts above EU Thresholds
160
13.01 Contracts which exceed EU thresholds must
comply with EU and UK Legislation, in addition to
complying with these CSOs. The office shall consult
with the Monitoring Officer or Legal Services on the
appropriate tendering procedures to be followed.

Contract
Standing Orders

Part 4,
Appendix K

161

14.01 The type of procurement procedure must be
advertised in:
i.

the Official Journal of the European
Union (OJEU) both at tender invitation
(the contract notice) and contract

D Procedure for Contracts above Procurement
Regulations Thresholds
13.01 Contracts which exceed Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 (PCR 2015), Utilities Contract
Regulations 2016, Concession Contracts Regulations
2016 thresholds must comply with UK Legislation, in
addition to complying with these CSOs. The office shall
consult with the Monitoring Officer or Legal Services
on the appropriate tendering procedures to be
followed.
14.01 The type of procurement procedure must be
advertised using:
i.

the Find a Tender Service both at tender
invitation (the contract notice) and
contract award stage (the contract award

39

40
Heading

Page

Current wording
award stage (the contract award
notice).

Revised wording (subject to approval)
notice).

161

15.01 Once the advertisement has been placed on
OJEU all the procurement documents must be
available free of charge electronically.

15.01 Once the advertisement has been placed in line
with the requirements in paragraph 14.01, all the
procurement documents must be available free of
charge electronically.

164

Not currently included in the Contract Procedure
Rules

New Paragraph regarding Dynamic Purchasing
Systems – See Appendix 2 for details.

Codes and
Part 5,
Protocols
(Staff/Councillor
Relationships)

182

The Distinctive Roles of Councillors and Staff –
Political Neutrality of Staff

The Distinctive Roles of Councillors and Staff – Political
Neutrality of Staff
Discussions between Staff and Councillors on policy
issues are quite proper. In particular Corporate
Leadership Meetings are held periodically at which
Corporate Leadership Board meets senior
administration Councillors to discuss substantive
matters. Those meetings have no Executive decision
powers

Codes and
Protocols –
Local Code of
Conduct for
Councillors and
Staff dealing
with Planning
Matters

188

Discussions between Staff and Councillors on policy
issues are quite proper. In particular Corporate
Leadership Meetings are held periodically at which
Management Team meets senior administration
Councillors to discuss substantive matters. Those
meetings have no Executive decision powers
beyond those matters specifically delegated to the
staff concerned.
General Role and Conduct of Councillors and Staff
Legislation emphasises the overriding requirement
that the public are entitled to expect the highest
standards of conduct and probity by all persons
holding public office. There are a number of
statutory provisions and codes setting standards
which must be followed if the public perception of
the integrity of public service, particularly town and
country planning, is to be maintained and

Legislation emphasises the overriding requirement
that the public are entitled to expect the highest
standards of conduct and probity by all persons
holding public office. There are a number of statutory
provisions and codes setting standards which must be
followed if the public perception of the integrity of
public service, particularly town and country planning,
is to be maintained and improved. Councillors are

Contract
Standing Orders

Section

Part 4,
Appendix K

Part 5,
Appendix O,
paragraph
1.01

General Role and Conduct of Councillors and Staff

Heading

Section

Page

Codes and
Protocols –
Local Code of
Conduct for
Councillors and
Staff dealing
with Planning
Matters

Part 5,
Appendix O,
paragraph
2.03

189

Current wording
improved. Councillors are reminded that they are
required to comply with the statutory provisions on
the disclosure of pecuniary interests, the National
Code of Local Government Conduct, this Council’s
Standing Orders and Scheme of Management and
Delegation.
All Councillors participate in development control
decision-making through the five local area
committees. However, initial decision-making
during preparation of the Local Plan and other
major planning policies is limited to those
Councillors who sit on the Policy and Review
Committee. It is this Committee which allocates
significant areas for development and other
uses. Thus, Councillors who have substantial
property interests, or other interests which would
prevent them from voting on a regular basis,
should avoid serving on this Committee. Any
Councillors, who are in this category, should also
avoid membership of the relevant Working Groups.
Although not decision-making forums, these
Working Groups are particularly influential in landuse policy formulation.

Revised wording (subject to approval)
reminded that they are required to comply with the
statutory provisions on the disclosure of pecuniary
interests, the Councillors’ Code of Conduct, this
Council’s Standing Orders and Scheme of
Management and Delegation.
All Councillors participate in development control
decision-making through the five local area
committees. However, initial decision-making during
preparation of the Local Plan and other major
planning policies is limited to those Councillors who sit
on the Policy and Review Committee*. It is this
Committee which allocates significant areas for
development and other
uses. Thus, Councillors who have substantial property
interests, or other interests which would prevent
them from voting on a regular basis, should avoid
serving on this Committee. Any Councillors, who are in
this category, should also avoid membership of the
relevant Working Groups. Although not decisionmaking forums, these Working Groups are particularly
influential in land-use policy formulation.
*The Policy and Review Committee may be appointed
by Council for the purpose of developing the Local Plan

Councillors’
Allowances

Part 6

196

For a copy of the current scheme please contact
the Head of Finance.

For a copy of the current scheme please contact the
Democratic Services Manager.

Councillors’
Allowances

Part 6

197

Councillor Training and Development

Councillor Training and Development

41

42
Heading

Councillors’
Allowances

Section

Part 6, 6.0

Page

197

Current wording
The 2017 Independent Review Panel considered
that certain training courses (specifically those on
development control; finance; and standards/code
of conduct/ethical framework) should be
mandatory for all Councillors. The Council agrees
that training in these areas is important and all
Councillors are encouraged to attend such training.

Revised wording (subject to approval)
The Council considers that the following training
courses are mandatory for all Councillors:
 development control and planning
 finance
 standards/code of conduct/ethical framework
 licensing (for those Councillors appointed to
the Licensing Committee)

Travel and Subsistence

The Council agrees that training in these areas is
important and all Councillors must attend such
training.
Travel and Subsistence

b. The current rates of travel and subsistence can
be obtained from the Head of Finance.

b. The current rates of travel and subsistence can be
obtained from the Democratic Services Manager.

Appendix 2
Draft update to Part 4 of the Constitution - Contracts Procedure Rules (page 156)
New paragraph:
(24.0)
Dynamic Purchasing Systems
24.01

Dynamic Purchasing Systems are regulated by the Public Contract Regulations 2015
(Part 2, Chapter 2, Section 4, Regulation 34).

24.02

A Dynamic Purchasing System (‘DPS’) shall be identical to a Framework Agreement,
except that any Supplier may apply for admittance to a DPS at any point
throughout the full period of its operation by satisfying defined Pre-Qualification
Criteria. The Council can use a DPS for commonly used purchases the
characteristics of which, as generally available on the market, meet their
requirements.

24.03

The DPS shall be operated entirely as a completely electronic process. All Dynamic
Purchasing Systems shall be openly advertised on the Council’s E-Tendering Portal,
irrespective of estimated value. All communication in the context of a DPS shall be
made by electronic means (in accordance with Regulation 22 (1) to (7) and (11) to
22)).

Stage 1: Establishing the DPS and adding additional suppliers
24.04

In order to procure under a DPS, Officers shall follow the Public Contract
Regulations 2015 rules of the restricted procedure and place a call for competition
in OJEU to make know the intention to establish a DPS. Also see paragraph 13.02 ii
above. This procedure requires a two stage process and the completion of a prequalification questionnaire. Suppliers must be allowed at least 30 days to respond.
The Council will follow the time limits as set out in Regulation 34 (8) – (12) .

24.05

A Dynamic Purchasing System may be divided into categories of goods, services or
works. In such cases, it is permissible to stipulate Pre-Qualification Criteria
appropriate to each category.

24.06

As with other procedures, the procurement documents should be freely available
electronically from the date of the advert and remain available electronically
throughout the lifetime of the DPS.

24.07

All candidates satisfying the selection criteria shall be admitted to the system. The
number of candidates admitted to the system shall not be limited in accordance
with regulations 28 (4) and 65.

43

24.08

Suppliers may join the DPS at any point during its validity if they satisfy the
selection criteria and none of the ground for exclusion apply. The Council will
evaluate these suppliers’ requests within 10 working days of receipt.

Stage 2: Awarding specific contracts using the DPS

44

24.09

At the time of inviting Tenders or Quotations under a DPS, Officers shall ensure that
all applications for admittance to the DPS received by that time have been
processed and all applicants have been notified of whether or not they have been
admitted to the DPS.

24.10

The Council will invite all admitted participants to submit a tender for each specific
procurement under the DPS in accordance with regulation 54. Where the DPS has
been divided into categories of works, products or services, contracting authorities
shall invite all participants having been admitted to the category corresponding to
the specific procurement concerned to submit a tender.

24.11

The use of DPS does not affect other requirements around evaluating tenders and
the award of contracts. It is a mechanism through which to raise invitations to
tender to suppliers who have demonstrated their eligibility when they joined the
scheme and therefore are not required to continually demonstrate their suitability
and capability each time they respond to the Invitation to Tender. Officers must
follow the rules for evaluating and awarding contracts in paragraphs 18 and 20 and
due diligence checks must be carried out to demonstrate that the supplier complies
with the specification. The Council will award the contract to the tenderer that
submitted the best tender on the basis of the award criteria set out in the contract
notice for the DPS.

24.12

There is no obligation to undertake a “standstill” period, although there may be
some benefits in doing so.

24.13

Details of the DPS will be published on the Council’s contract register and the
contract award notice must be published in line with Public Contract Regulations
2015 (see paragraph 20 above).

Agenda Item 10
CABINET STATEMENT
CABINET MEMBER FOR ECONOMY – COUNCILLOR DEREK PRETTY
It’s been a busy year for Economy as the business community has recovered from
two years of pandemic. However, 2023 looks as though it will be even more
challenging as they struggle with rising costs and staff shortages resulting from the
downturn in the Economy.
The business support offered by the team is changing noticeably. For most of the
year, around ten companies per month have been seeking help and most of those
were looking for employment space to satisfy their expansion plans. However, this is
changing with the number of businesses seeking help rising to 26 with the emphasis
moving to funding and survival. We have even been asked for help with selling their
business.
With the challenges that the Council face the team is conscious of the need to attract
income to the borough by accelerating the arrival of investors who will increase the
Council’s business rates revenue among other benefits. We are therefore
developing an investment policy and investor brochure which will promote the
borough and in particular the employment spaces of One Horton Heath and
Navigator Quarter.
Navigator Quarter has been granted tax status within the proposed Freeport. We are
now awaiting formal approval of the Freeport Business plan which we hope will be
announced shortly.
Income this year has been generated through external funding as projects have
concluded and been reimbursed by the European Union and Central Government:
 £132,000 from the Welcome Back Fund
 £120,000 from PONToon
Even with the current moratorium on filling vacant offices and the closure of its
meeting rooms, Wessex House has continued to contribute approximately £500,000
so the centre has continued to pay for itself and has a growing list of potential
tenants interested in flexible workspace.
I am able to report that 18 businesses were eligible for energy efficiency grants from
the Covid Discretionary funding. Between them, they received £415,000 and have
spent it on solar panelling, insulation, and LED lighting. We have just started a
series of articles highlighting their emissions savings on EBC’s LinkedIn page and on
the website:
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/business/support-for-businesses/businessesbecoming-more-energy-efficient
On the downside I have to report that the Youth Employment Hub is now closed as a
result of the DWP withdrawing funding. A project closure report is available with
lessons learned and a summary of outcomes:


556 individuals attended hub sessions

45





371 individuals increased their skills and employability
172 individuals had work experience or volunteered
82 individuals enrolled in training or education

Clearly this scheme was benefitting many people and it is sad that funding was
withdrawn
We are working with the BID to boost sales of the Borough Gift Card. Around 70
have now been bought and the number of outlets across the borough where they
can be spent now stands at 80 and rising. The back page of the winter Borough
News is encouraging residents to support their local shops by buying the gift card
and this encouragement is extended to Cabinet and all Members.

46

CABINET STATEMENT
CABINET MEMBER FOR HEALTH AND SOCIAL POLICY – COUNCILLOR
CRAIG
HealthWorks
HealthWorks have seen a steady increase in participation rates as public confidence
improves post pandemic. The Activity Buddy Scheme was launched in June and
forms part of our We Are Undefeatable Campaign which is targeting the extremely
clinically vulnerable. To date 9 individuals with a mental or physical disability have
been matched with a physical activity buddy. The team have coordinated the
delivery of the summer Holiday, Food and Activity (HAF) programme which provided
365 individuals on a low income or in receipt of free school meals with an opportunity
to enjoy fun, creative learning days and a free hot lunch at Itchen Valley Country
Park. We are just finalising a Warm Spaces offer, working in partnership with a
variety of community organisations and charities to create a directory of venues
offering free tea and coffee, activities, and a warm location for Eastleigh residents
over the winter months, to address the impact of the cost of living crisis. So far, 13
venues have signed up to the charter and more are expected over the coming
months. Some of these venues are now welcoming residents.
SportWorks
The SportWorks Park Sport programme for young people aged 5 to 16 attracted a
total throughput of 2,382 over a four-week period and provided discounts for those
families in receipt of benefits. There was an increase in female participation and
overall attendance from bookings compared to last year. This was despite a small
price increase to £2.50 which helps to support the sustainability of the programme.
Friday Night Football, which provides a positive activity across 3 areas of the
Borough for young people aged 9-19, continues to grow with a throughput of 1,102
for Q2. This is a growth of 37% on the previous quarter. Throughput at PLE
continues to increase and the paddling pool provided a popular free offer for families
over the summer period. A total of 184,831 visits during Q2 was an increase of
17,627 on the previous quarter. The development of the Health and Wellbeing room
has enabled partnerships with health agencies to be enhanced with a range of
community programmes supporting residents.
Country Parks
In addition to 79,000 visitors to Itchen Valley, 43 events reached 2,000 participants
delivering wellbeing programmes, many designed to reach low-income families or
isolated adults. NHS Wellfest in June 2022 saw 933 members of NHS staff from
Hampshire and the Isle of Wight converge at Itchen Valley Country Park over three
days to celebrate wellness and inclusion. The festival gave attendees the chance to
“rest, recharge and reconnect” after battling Coronavirus. Wellfest opened up the
opportunity to try new activities, listen to speakers and enjoy music to help instil
improvements in mental and physical wellbeing. High Hill field at Itchen Valley was
chosen specifically by event organisers who appreciated the benefits of being in
nature and acknowledged the work we do in the community- facilitating events which

47

allow visitors to improve their own health and wellbeing in the beauty of the country
park and beyond. We hosted a volunteer fayre in September for local residents to
explore opportunities with the Council and other local partners. We hosted 6 partners
from across the Borough, including One Community, and local uniformed groups.
Arts and Culture
The Arts and Culture service has seen throughput of 84,387 across all areas of
activity between April and September. This is a significantly high number of
engagements, but theatre attendance is not yet in line with pre-covid figures, and this
is being seen across the UK theatre sector. Programming mainstream and more
commercial shows, activities and events are attracting a broader audience and
making the work of the service more accessible. Activities of note include
Unwrapped taking place in Eastleigh and Hedge End, Summer Social in Eastleigh
and the Sustainability hub at The Point, attendees at all three events numbered
10,000. We were successful with our Arts Council England (ACE) National Portfolio
Organisation (NPO) application which brings with it national recognition for the work
of The Point and funding in the region of £127k annually for 3 years.
Afghan and Ukrainian Evacuee Project
The Afghan Resettlement Project continues to support 150 individuals. An additional
Community Development Worker was recruited in September to provide resilience
and further develop the support package on offer.
The Ukrainian Support Project commenced in May and has delivered 25 weekly café
sessions attended by 20 to 40 individuals. The Team have prevented 17 families
from becoming homeless due to relationship breakdowns with hosts or hosting
periods ending.

48

CABINET STATEMENT
CABINET MEMBER FOR SOCIAL POLICY AND REGENERATION (NORTH) –
COUNCILLOR BICKNELL
Overall, the teams which support the Social Policy portfolio have been seeing
increased pressures due to the Cost of Living Crisis. This can also be seen with the
increased work that Citizens Advice Eastleigh is receiving for debt advice, Universal
Credit and benefits and tax credits. All are trending sharply in an upward direction
and are expected to increase even further once the effects of increased energy bills
are realised.
Despite this though, teams are delivering great results across the Borough for our
residents as can be seen from the highlights below.
Social Policy
Housing and Homelessness
 As part of our Rough Sleeper Initiative (RSI) funding bid we were awarded
£58,500 to fund a rough sleeping recovery worker for an 18 month post.
Following successful recruitment, the Housing Resettlement Specialist starts
on 31st October 2022 and will be working directly with rough sleepers
providing intensive support and drawing services together to ensure a
wraparound package of support to aid in the resolution of homelessness. This
is a great opportunity for some key partnership working.


Following a review of the Housing Case Management Team, the
Homelessness function of the Case Management role has been moved to the
Health and Wellbeing Executive area and is currently undergoing Job
Evaluation. The change will support greater opportunities to train, mentor and
develop the team to subsequently deliver an improved service to our most
vulnerable customers who are threatened/ homeless.



Using homelessness grant funding, a new support service has been procured
for the service. BEAM supports vulnerable people by providing an intensive
package of support, raising funds for the prevention of homelessness via
crowdfunding and engaging local landlords and businesses in the area to
increase housing and employment opportunities. The funding covers 25 x
support packages in the first instance with a view to extending if successful.

Disabled Facilities Grants and Housing Enforcement
 The Housing Enforcement team has, in Q2 of this financial year, received 87
service requests which, while lower compared to same period last year, is on
par with pre-pandemic levels and could be symptomatic of the focus currently
being more on cost of living crisis matters for residents.

49



The Disabled Facility Grant (DFG) service, over Q2 of this financial year, have
approved 70 DFGs, committing just over £600k in grant money for
adaptations. The average cost per DFG has increase to just below £10k
which is a 34% increase since 2019/20 reflecting increased complexity of
cases and effect of the global increase in material costs.

Housing benefits and Council Tax Support
 As you can image the team is extremely busy due to the pressures of the
“cost of living crisis”. Despite this the team are performing heroics and have
delivered the following results:
- Discretionary Housing Payment allocation is on track for 100% spend.
-

Housing Benefit Subsidy audit for year 21/22 spend now in progress.

-

Due to service review, performance in terms of processing days has
meant we are currently running at 9 days (previously 20 days which was
national average) for new claims which puts us in the top quartile in the
country. This is a fantastic achievement and I’d like to take this opportunity
to publicly thank the team for achieving this.

Housing Revenue Account
 As well as providing new affordable housing, work is progressing well on
drawing up the policies needed for Eastleigh Councils new Housing Revenue
Account. This is a large piece of work that needs to be concluded before the
HRA can function. The first tranche of policies have already been through the
Policy and Scrutiny panel with the second tranche soon to follow.


I would like to thank all the staff and members who are involved with the
drafting of these policies to ensure that not only is Eastleigh Borough Council
providing quality homes, but we have equally good quality policies to support
our tenants when they start to live in these homes.

Regeneration North
Post Office site
 I am pleased to be able to report that work will be starting in the very near
future on this exciting new regeneration development site in the Town Centre.
This will be the first development in the Town Centre for a considerable time
and will serve as a kickstart for future regeneration opportunities to revitalise
the Town Centre.




50

This is alongside the new planters in the Town Centre which have been
provided by the Eastleigh Local Area Committee, with more enhancements to
come in the new year. This has regenerated the public realm and feel of the
Town Centre which is as important as regenerating the “bricks and mortar”.
The old Post Office will provide residential rented accommodation on the
upper floors in both buildings. In total, it is proposed there will be 10 one

bedroom flats and 18 two bedroom flats across the two buildings. All of the
flats will be for made available for rent and 10 provided at affordable rent
rates.


The approximate timings of works are below.
- Demolition Complete – January 2023
- Foundations (piling) Complete – Spring 2023
- Buildings Concrete Frame Start – Spring 2023
- Buildings Concrete Frame Complete – Autumn 2023
- External works complete – Summer 2024
- Tenants in occupation – Autumn 2024

Flexford Nature Reserve
 Regeneration is not always about brick and mortar as it also encompasses
green things too. An example is the £75K improvement works at the Flexford
Nature Reserve in Chandlers Ford making the reserve accessible for
everyone, by laying a new path and repairing bridges, while increasing
biodiversity and protecting eroding river banks.

51

This page is intentionally left blank

